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METROPOLITAN WASHINGTON AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 

REQUEST FOR QUOTATIONS 2-13-B0804 
 

Compensation Consultant for Board of Directors 
 
 

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS 
 

September 9, 2013 
 

 
1. Question: RFQ Page 1: a. Are Quotations to be provided in hard copy only? b. How many hard 

copies of the Quotation should be provided? c. Are soft copies transmitted via email 
acceptable? 

 
Answer:   Hard copy only – 2 copies and the original  

 
 
2. Question: Price Schedule: Can the price schedule be modified to reflect labor hours and costs for 

the different levels of consultants that could provide services to the Authority?  
 
Answer:   The Price Schedule has been modified in Amendment One.  The revised Price Schedule 

allows multiple labor categories totaling 500 hours.  You can quote something such as 
the following: Senior Consultant - 250 hours, Administrative Support – 100 hours, and 
Researcher - 150 hours. 

 
 

3. Question: Price schedule: please confirm the Price Schedule assumes 500 hours of work in each 
of the Base Year, Optional Year One and Optional Year 2. 

 
Answer:   Yes, the Price Schedule assumes 500 hours of work in the base year and each of the 

two optional years. 
 
 

4. Question: Price Schedule: Where should the estimated cost of travel be reflected? 
 
Answer:   The Airports Authority anticipates local travel only.  Hourly unit rates shall be fully 

burdened and include all labor, travel time, travel costs, benefits, overhead, general 
conditions and profit, as noted in the Price Schedule. 

 
 

5. Question: Statement of Work: Can the Authority provide more guidance on the expected scope of 
services to be provided? This includes: a. current compensation strategy; b. the 
elements of pay used to compensate the senior managers; c. how many senior 
managers would be included in the study or are under the purview of the Executive and 
Governance Committee; d. is the Authority contemplating a strategic redesign of 
programs, including any incentive programs; e. what are the current incentive and pay-
for-performance programs; f. what are the challenges with the existing senior manager 
pay program? 

 
Answer:   The consultants will advise the Executive and Governance Committee regarding 

compensation issues related to no more than 10 senior managers.  The Authority’s 
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current compensation philosophy is to pay employees, including senior managers, within 
5% of the market and the elements of pay currently used for senior management 
compensation are not substantially different than for other employees.  The Airports 
Authority is open to a redesign of the program. 

 
Please note that this project is relatively small with a narrow scope of service as 
reflected by the number of hours in the Price Schedule.  Consequently, one consistent 
consultant to advise the Committee on issues related to pay and performance measures 
is needed. 
 
 

6. Question: Statement of Work Airports Authority Background paragraph: Last sentence indicates 
the Authority needs the consultant to assess the skills of the Authority senior managers. 
Please expand on the Authority expectations?  

 
Answer:   The last sentence in the Statement of Work was in error.  It has been removed from the 

Revised Statement of Work provided in Amendment One. 
 
 

7. Question: Executive and Governance Committee: What are the Committees desired capabilities 
from the advisor? 

 
Answer:   The Committee expects that the advisor  will be capable of making recommendations on 

appropriate pay levels, designing and implementing short and long-term incentive 
arrangements, providing survey and competitive benchmarking information related to 
industry and market pay practices, and providing guidance on matters related to 
employment agreement, complex and evolving accounting tax, and regulatory issues 
related to executive pay.  Note Section V-07 of the RFQ provides a listing of minimum 
qualifications of the contractor. 

 
 

8. Question: Based on our experience in similar engagements, the 500 annual consulting hour 
estimate is significantly more than we would expect for the analysis and advice 
requested by the RFQ. Could MWAA expand on how that estimate was reached? 
 

Answer:   The 500 hours was based on a $45,000/year estimate.  The work is as needed; it could 
take significantly less than 500 hours.  We are not guaranteeing a certain number of 
hours of work as described in the Price Schedule notes. 

 
 

9. Question: What deliverables or presentations does MWAA anticipate requesting as a part of this 
consulting engagement? 

 
Answer:   The deliverables are in the form of 1) making recommendations on appropriate pay 

levels, 2) the design of incentive arrangement, and 3) the results of research related to 
survey and competitive benchmarking information. 

 
 

10. Question: Can the quoter submit exceptions/modifications to the RFQ and/or the Blanket Purchase 
Order General Terms and Conditions contained in Section VII of the RFQ (the "Terms 
and Conditions") or will quoter be considered nonresponsive for doing so? 

 
Answer:   No. 
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11. Question:  If the answer to Question 11 is no, does this mean that to be in compliance with the RFQ 

(and to not be considered nonresponsive and disqualified from winning the work), quoter 
must accept the Terms and Conditions "as is" with no allowance for modifications or 
negotiations? 

 
Answer:   Yes. 
 
 

12. Question: May quoter submit its form Engagement Letter and SOW as part of quoter's response to 
the RFQ as the basis for contract negotiations, should quoter win the work or will quoter 
be disqualified for doing so? 

 
Answer:   The Authority is looking to have someone available as needed to provide this service.  

We have our own SOW; there is no formal engagement; this is work on an as-needed 
basis. 

 
 

13. Question: If the answer to Question 12 is no, is the Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority (the 
"Authority") willing to work with quoter to modify the Terms and Conditions included in 
the RFQ? 

 
Answer:   No, per response to question 10. 
 


